Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Monday, 30 May 2022
EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on
Tuesday, 7 June 2022
beginning at
7:00 pm
in the
Oak Suite, Holiday Inn, Leigh Rd, Eastleigh SO50 9PG

TO:

Councillor Alex Bourne (Chair)
Councillor Paul Bicknell (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Steve Beer
Councillor Bhavin Dedhia
Councillor Wayne Irish
Councillor Darshan Mann

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Tanya Park
Councillor Cameron Spencer
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

Laura Johnston, Democratic Services Manager, 02380 688041
Email:laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk Please email
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak
before the meeting.
Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email:
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social media is
permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or Support

1

Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified and reasonable facilities can be
provided. More information can be found here.
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers.

2

AGENDA
1.
2.

Apologies
Public Participation
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is
12pm on Monday 6 June 2022.
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can
manage numbers. We are still encouraging gall those in attendance to take a
lateral flow test before attending the meeting. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS.

3.

Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

4.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2022 and approve as a
correct record.

5.

Chair's Report

6.

Presentation on Planning Guidelines

7.

Planning Application - 67 Falcon Square, Eastleigh, SO50 9JF - F/21/92120
(Pages 9 - 28)
Sever land, demolish existing outbuilding and erect pair of semi-detached 2 bed
houses (F/21/92120).

8.

Planning Application - Neighbourhood Square, Highwood Avenue, North
Stoneham Park, Eastleigh - F/22/92964 (Pages 29 - 36)
External permanent public art installation in the form of a clock utilising real-time
bus arrivals data and coloured LED lighting, mounted to a slim mast or pole (full
height 5.652 metres) (F/22/92964).

9.

Appointments to Outside Bodies (Pages 37 - 48)

10.

Financial Management Report (Pages 49 - 54)

11.

Planning Appeals
The Legal Services Manager to report:
(a)

that the following appeals have been lodged:

3

20 Kenilworth Gardens, Eastleigh, SO40 4PT
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission to carry our
works on a tree protected by a tree preservation order.
(b)

that the following appeals have been dismissed:
143 Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh, SO50 9NH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the erection
of a single wheelchair user dwelling (Category M4(3) Building Regulations,
2021) to the rear of 143-145 Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh, SO50 9NH,
together with associated access.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 at 7:00 pm
In the Oak Suite, Holiday Inn, Leigh Rd,
Eastleigh SO50 9PG
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

4

Agenda Item 4
1
EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 30 March 2022 (7:30 pm – 8:31 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Bourne (Chair); Councillors Bicknell, Campbell, Clarke, Irish,
Mann, Park and Tyson-Payne
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dedhia
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
29.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Irish declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 7 of the Agenda
as he expected to be on the panel for Hampshire County Council to
determine the application that was being consulted on.

30.

MINUTES
RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting(s) held on 18 January 2022 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

31.

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair stated that he was pleased to see some great photos of tree
planting at Fleming Park and Magpie Lane, and that it was nice to see
pupils from Nightingale Primary School involved along with Councillors
Mann and Bicknell.
The Chair was pleased to report that the community garden project was
continuing to flourish, and he also advised people to look out for the newly
dug wildflower beds across the Borough.
The Chair mentioned that the summer would see lots of changes to the
town centre with murals, lights, planters and benches in an exciting project
that he was looking forward to seeing the final transformation.
The Chair was pleased to report that work had begun on the refurbishment
of the Town Centre Toilets, which were now closed until they were
finished, and alternative provisions were in place in Eastleigh House and
many local businesses.

5

2

32.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
A local resident raised concerns that the air quality data was not being
kept up to date. He questioned when it was last looked at and when the
analyser was going to repaired.
The Chair stated that Officers would respond to him via email.
Another local resident mentioned the Lawn Road park improvements had
come in substantially over budget. She wanted to know what lessons had
been learned to ensure better value on park improvements in the future.
The Chair said that the improvements were not yet finished, but when they
were, there would then be a lessons learned session and then they could
report back to her.

33.

PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES
The Planning Manager gave a short presentation on guidelines that had to
be taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This was set
against the broader policy framework.

34.

PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND OFF CHICKENHALL LANE,
EASTLEIGH CONSULTATION - CS/22/92463
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning &
Economy (Agenda item 7) concerning the Land off Chickenhall Lane –
HCC consultation for proposed material recycling facility. (Ref.
CS/22/92463).
Councillors stated that whilst they were not against the general principal of
recycling, this site was not currently suitable with all the points mentioned,
and should the Chickenhall Lane link road be completed then it could be a
different prospect.
RESOLVED That the Council responds to Hampshire County Council’s
Consultation with an objection to the proposed material recycling
facility for the reasons outlined in the Officers’ report, and further
requests were made to Hampshire County Council for additional
information to be included in the Council’s response, as per the
comments made by members at the meeting (appended to the signed
minutes).
(Note: Councillor Irish declared a non-pecuniary interest in the item as he
expected to be on the panel for Hampshire County Council to determine

6

3
the application that was being consulted on. He did not take part in the
debate and abstained from voting.
Two members of the public spoke in objection to the consultation citing
concerns, including but not limited to increased traffic in the area, further
damage to air quality, increased HGV movements, no mention of Blaze in
the consultation, pressure on current infrastructure, fire risks and proximity
to the railway, airport and freeport if there was to be a fire. A more in-depth
summary of points made is appended in the signed minutes.)
35.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Legal Services Manager reported:(a)

that the following appeals had been lodged:143 Passfield Avenue, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9NH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission
for the erection of 1 no. 2-bedroom, single-storey Wheelchair User
Dwelling (Category M4(3) Building Regulations, 2010) to the rear of
143-145 Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh, SO50 9NH, together with
associated access from Passfield Avenue.
This was a delegated decision.
Land at Toynbee Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9DH
Appeal against the Council’s non-determination in time for the
Construction of 105 dwellings together with access from Toynbee
Road, associated parking public open space and landscaping
following the demolition of existing buildings (amended plans).
This was a committee decision.

(b)

that the following appeals have been dismissed:103 Bournemouth Road, Chandler’s Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 3AE
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the
demolition of existing commercial building and construction of a part
three-storey and part two-storey block of flats comprising of 6 no. 2
bed units and 2 no. 1 bed units, with associated parking,
landscaping and access from Bournemouth Road.
This was a committee decision.

RESOLVED That the report be noted.

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 7 June 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

F/21/92120
Alex Webb
16/12/2021
67 FALCON SQUARE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 9JF
Regal Homes Ltd
Sever land, demolish existing outbuilding and erect pair of
semi-detached 2 bed houses

Recommendation:

PERMIT Subject to suggested conditions and:
Securing mitigation towards the development’s impact on
the Special Protection Areas by way recreational
disturbance and requirement for nutrient neutrality

__________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in
accordance with the following plans numbered: 9445/200 Rev D,
9445/201 Rev F
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning

2.

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

3.

No excavation, demolition or development related works shall
take place on site until a scaled and referenced tree protection plan,
as per British Standard 5837:2012 (Trees in Relation to Design,
Demolition and Construction – Recommendations), is submitted and
approved by the LPA. The approved tree protection plan must be
adhered to in full and may only be modified subject to written
agreement from the LPA.
Reason: to retain and protect the existing trees which form an
important part of the amenity of the locality.

4.

No development shall start until a landscaping scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The scheme shall cover all hard & soft landscaping [including trees and
boundary treatment] and shall provide details of timings for all

9

landscaping and any future maintenance. The works shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved plans and to the appropriate
British Standard.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents.
5.

No development shall start until a construction method statement
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority, which shall include:
(a) A programme of and phasing of demolition (if any) and construction
work;
(b) The provision of long-term facilities for contractor parking;
(c) The arrangements, including times, for deliveries associated with all
construction works, loading/ unloading of plant and materials, and
carting away of materials;
(d) Methods and phasing of construction works;
(e) Access and egress for plant and machinery;
(f) Protection of pedestrian routes during construction;
(g) Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction
material, and plant storage areas;
(h) Details of the methodology for ensuring dirt is not transferred onto
the highway from the site (i.e. wheel washers), and onwards mitigation
should this fail, such as the employment of mechanical road sweepers.
(i) Details for a precautionary pond dismantling method statement
Demolition and construction work shall only take place in accordance
with the approved method statement.
Reason - In order that the Planning Authority can properly consider the
effect of the works on the amenity of the locality.

6.

No development shall start until details of a sustainable drainage
system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The details shall include a timetable for its
implementation and a management/ maintenance plan for the lifetime
of the development [including the arrangements for adoption by any
public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to
secure the effective operation of the sustainable drainage system
throughout its lifetime]. The system shall be implemented and
thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage for the development

7.

10

No development above DPC level shall start until details and samples
of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces
of the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of
the amenities of the area.
8.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a
mitigation package addressing the additional nutrient inputs arising
from the development has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority. Such a mitigation package shall
address all of the additional nutrient loading upon protected European
sites from the development and shall allow the Local Planning
Authority to ascertain on the basis of the best available scientific
evidence that such additional nutrient loading will not have an adverse
effect on the integrity of those European Sites, having regard to the
conservation objectives for they are designated. The mitigation
package shall be implemented in full and evidence of this provided to
the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to first occupation of the
development.
Reason: To mitigate the nitrates impacts arising from the development
upon the European protected Solent Complex in accordance with the
requirements of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017.

9.

Prior to the occupation of the development, as built stage SAP data
and as built stage water calculator confirming energy efficiency and the
predicted internal mains water consumption to achieve the following
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority: In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a 19%
improvement of dwelling emission rate over the target emission rate as
set in the 2013 Building Regulations In respect of water consumption, a
maximum predicted internal mains water consumption of 105
litres/person/day. The development shall not be carried out otherwise
than in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design;
in line with the guidance set out in the Government's Ministerial
Statement of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning
Authorities should, from the date of its publication, take into account
the government's intentions in the statement

10. Prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved the biodiversity
enhancements in section 2.1.6 of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal
report by KJF Consultancy shall be implemented in full unless
otherwise agreed in writing by The Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To achieve an overall biodiversity net-gain on site.
11. The development shall not be occupied until bin & cycle storage has
been constructed in accordance with details that have first been
submitted to and approved in writing by The Local Planning Authority

11

and thereafter retained and kept available.
Reason - To ensure the adequate provision of on-site facilities
12. Prior to occupation, provision for parking shall have been made within
the site in accordance with the approved plans and shall be retained
thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate on-site car parking provision for the
approved development.
13. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, evidence that
the dwelling complies with Part M4(2) standard (Accessible and
adaptable dwellings) of the building regulations for new build
residential development (or future equivalent), shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with
the approved details.
Reason: To ensure the development meets higher national access
standards in accordance with policy DM29 of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan 2016-2036
14. The proposed parking hard surface/s shall be constructed in nonmigratory materials to prevent the spread of loose material onto the
rear service road.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety.
15. No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place
during the construction period except between the hours of 0800 to
1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all
on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings.
16. No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source
shall take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out
process.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties
17. The window at first floor level on the north elevation as shown on the
approved plan 9445/201 Rev F shall be obscure glazed to Pilkingtons
level 3 or equivalent with no more than a top-hung opening toplight.
Once installed the window shall be permanently maintained in that
condition.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential
properties
18. No additional or altered side facing windows shall be constructed at

12

first floor level without the prior written consent of the local planning
authority.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the adjoining residential
properties.
Note to Applicant:
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are
dealt with in a timely manner.
Report:
1. This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Bicknell,
Bourne and Mann and due to the number of objection letters.
Description of the application:
2. The application proposes to sever land, demolish an existing outbuilding
and erect pair of semi-detached 2 bed dwellings within the rear garden of
67 Falcon Square.
3. The dwellings would be accessed from the access road to the rear of
properties within Falcon Square and Greenfinch Square.
4. The proposed dwellings would be 2 storey properties with internal floor
areas measuring 70 sq. m and internal storage space greater than 2 sq.
m.
5. The design would incorporate hipped rooflines, a front (west) facing gable
feature with a cat-slide element that reflects a design feature present in
many properties within the Aviary Estate Special Policy Area. The
dwellings would be constructed of red brick with stone details and clay
effect roof tiles. The windows would be white UPVC.
6. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical
assessments:
- Primary Ecological Appraisal Report KJF Consultancy Ltd June 2021
- Nitrate Assessment - Aqua Callidus Consulting February 2022
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
7. The site is part of the Aviary Estate which is a cohesive development
arranged around large open squares. The area contains a few replicated
design styles with some properties rendered and others constructed of
brick

13

8. The site forms part of the large rear garden of 67 Falcon Square, a midterraced property within the estate. It is level, largely well maintained with
some small ornamental trees and shrubbery. The boundary treatment
consists of 1.8m high close board fencing. The area where the properties
are proposed has areas that are more overgrown.
Relevant Planning History:


F/21/90202 - Construction of 1no. three bedroom detached dwelling with
associated parking following removal of existing outbuilding – Permitted
25/10/2021

Representations Received:
9. 8 Representations have been made. 7.no of these were objections and
1.no was a comment. The points from these representations are
summarised below:























14

Loss/Invasion of privacy
Overlooking
Proximity to neighbouring properties (Greenfinch Close and Falcon
Square.)
Effect on wildlife and birds in our trees and surrounding trees
Not Aesthetically pleasing
Visually intrusive
Over intensive use
Feeling of overcrowding; cramped development
Increase pressure on drainage and sewage system
Access
- Unsafe
- narrow access;
- Impact of pedestrians and vehicles using the service road
- Poor visibility and
- lack of space
- Increase in traffic frequency
Increased noise from residents and vehicles using the access road.
Refuse collection: How will the bins be emptied due to no front
access of the properties?
Impact on trees
Impact on character of the Aviary Estate
Poor standard of service road
Noise pollution when/if the work takes place.
Parking of construction vehicles and obstructions caused
Repairs/resurfacing of service road and ongoing maintenance
Hours of construction
Potential to cause nearby gardens to flood.
Need to retain access to back of properties due to limited parking out
the front of the properties.









increased littering within the community due to residents not getting
the bins emptied.
Dust/Mess during construction
Affect the community
Impact on mental health
Loss of view
Loss of light
Devalue homes

Consultation Responses:
10. Highway Officer (HCC) - No Objection, subject to conditions
The application provides the required 4 vehicle parking spaces to the front
of the proposed dwellings, with access off of the rear service road.
However, the layout is for 4 side-by-side vehicles which has the benefit of
no blocking in. Whilst a slightly elongated reverse movement out of the
spaces (2, 3 and 4 in particular) is required to reach the area to the south
within which a vehicle turn can be achieved to enable an egress from the
rear service road onto Falcon Close (between numbers 63 and 65), the
movement is achievable and speeds will be low. Alternatively, a vehicle
could exit a space and drive forwards to exit the rear service road onto
Wren Road, passing along the rear service road for approximately 180m.
Whilst there is an increased potential for conflict with oncoming vehicles
when travelling this route, there are informal passing places due to garage
and rear parking indents.
11. Ecology Team – No objection subject to conditions
12. Natural England - Comments as follows:
Recreational impacts – The New Forest Special Area of Conservation
(SAC) and New Forest Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site
As submitted, we consider it will have an adverse effect on the integrity of
the New Forest Special Protection Area (SPA), Special Area of
Conservation (SAC) and Ramsar site. Objects to this proposal.
Recreational disturbance - Solent Special Protection Areas (SPAs)
This application is within 5.6km of Solent and Dorset Coast SPA and will
lead to a net increase in residential accommodation. Natural England is
aware that Eastleigh Borough Council have adopted planning policy to
mitigate against adverse effects from recreational disturbance on the
Solent SPA sites, as agreed by the Solent Recreation Mitigation
Partnership (SRMP), also known as Bird Aware Solent.
Provided that the applicant is complying with the policy and the Bird Aware
Definitive Strategy, Natural England are satisfied that the applicant has
mitigated against the potential adverse effects of the development on the
integrity of the European site(s) and has no objection to this aspect of the
application.

15

Deterioration of the water environment – nutrient neutrality
Your authority has measures in place to manage potential impacts through
contributions to an agreed strategic solution which we consider to be
ecologically sound. Natural England is of the view that if these measures,
including contributions to them, are implemented, they will be effective and
reliable in preventing harmful effects of the development on the integrity of
the European site(s), and has no objection to this aspect of the
application.
13. Streetscene - No Objection.
14. Trees - No objection subject to condition.
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site





Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within Established Residential Area
Within HRA Screening Area
Within Solent Mitigation and Disturbance Zone

Development Plan Local Plan Policies
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) Policies:


















Strategic policies:
S1 (Sustainable development);
S2 (Approach to new development);
S3 (Location of new housing)
Development Management Policies:
DM1 (General development criteria);
DM2 (Environmentally sustainable development);
DM4 (Zero or low carbon energy)
DM3 (Adaptation to Climate Change);
DM6 (Sustainable surface water management and watercourse
management)
DM10 (Water and waste water);
DM11 (Nature conservation);
DM13 (Transport);
DM14 (Parking);
DM23 (Residential development in urban areas);
DM26 (Creating a mix of housing);
DM29 (Dwellings with higher access standards)
DM30 (Internal space standards for new residential development)
DM38 (Funding Infrastructure).
Special Policies:

16



E10 (Aviary Estate, Eastleigh)

Supplementary Planning Documents
-

Quality Places (November 2011);
Residential Parking Standards (January 2009);
Planning Obligations (July 2008, updated 2010).
Trees and Development Supplementary Planning Document (April
2022)
- Character Area Appraisals Eastleigh (January 2008)
National Planning Policy Framework
15. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. A deliverable 5-year supply of housing within each local
authority area is required, and if this is not demonstrated a tilted balance in
favour of the development applies. Agent of Change principles protect
existing businesses.
16. Paragraph 119 promotes the effective use of land in meeting the need for
homes while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring
safe and healthy living conditions. Paragraph 120 promotes and supports
the development of under-utilised land especially if this would help to meet
identified needs for housing where land supply is constrained and
available sites could be used more effectively.
17. Reference is made to residential gardens under paragraphs 71 and 124d.
These paragraphs note to resist inappropriate development of residential
gardens, for example where development would cause harm to the local
area but also stating that planning policies and decisions should support
development that makes efficient use of land, while taking into account the
desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting
(including residential gardens).
18. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

17

National Planning Practice Guidance
19. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
20. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of
significant weight.
21. The relevant policies and guidance combine to form the criteria against
which this application will be assessed with particular regard to: the
relevant planning policies and the principle of development; the character
and appearance of that proposed; its impact upon the Aviary Estate
Special Policy Area; impact upon residential amenity, highway matters,
Trees, Ecology, Impact on the SPAs, Sustainability Measures and Climate
Change, Human Health, Planning Obligation/considerations and other
material planning considerations.
Principle of Development:
22. The site is located within the urban edge and is surrounded by residential
properties. It is in a moderately accessible area and close to several bus
routes to Eastleigh and other local destinations, with relatively good
pedestrian and cycle links to nearby facilities. Strategic policy S2 allocates
1,475 units for windfall development of and this proposal would be classed
as such. The principle of development is therefore acceptable.
23. The proposal would represent the development of a residential garden,
which does not fall within the definition of previously developed land (as
defined on page 70 of the NPPF, revised July 2021). However, this does
not preclude the site from being developed, instead it is up to the decision
maker to balance the requirement to make efficient use of urban land
verses the potential impact the development would have on the prevailing
character of the area. This will be considered below in the detailed
assessment section.
24. Of particular importance in the site planning history is extant planning
permission F/21/90202 for the Construction of 1no. three bedroom
detached dwelling with associated parking following removal of existing

18

outbuilding which establishes the principle of residential development on
this site.
Economic Sustainability:
25. Section 2 of the NPPF, when discussing economic sustainability, seeks to
‘help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by ensuring
that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places and at
the right time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; and
by identifying and coordinating the provision of infrastructure. The
proposal would result in the provision of 2 open market houses thereby
supporting the population of Eastleigh as well as providing employment
during construction. it is considered that there are economic benefits and
the scheme has a positive economic contribution to sustainability.
Social Sustainability:
26. Chapter 5 of the 2021 NPPF ‘Delivering a Sufficient Supply of Homes’
states that, ‘it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land can
come forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups with specific
housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission is
developed without unnecessary delay’.
27. The proposal would provide for 2 x 2-bed dwellings and the provision of
such smaller units would meet a demand for 2- and 3-bed dwellings
across the district. The dwelling types and sizes are considered to meet a
need for smaller private market accommodation in accordance with local
plan policy DM24.
28. Access to the dwellings and WCs would be step-free to make them
suitable for a range of potential occupants (including older people,
individuals with reduced mobility and some wheelchair users) in
accordance with Part M4(2) standard (accessible and adaptable dwellings)
of the building regulations for new build residential development and this
would be secured through condition. Internally, the properties would meet
the Nationally Described Space Standards and would therefore provide a
good level of internal space for future residents. The proposal would
therefore in accordance with local plan policies DM29 and DM30.
29. On balance, it is considered that there is a social benefit to the proposed
scheme and therefore it is considered socially sustainable.
Environmental Sustainability:
30. There are a number of different components to Environmental
Sustainability, including consideration of site-specific planning matters and
the impacts of the development on its surroundings, which are considered
below under the relevant subheadings. The proposal relates to an urban
site in a sustainable location, close to Eastleigh Town Centre, thereby

19

providing housing in an area that can reduce car dependence within the
borough.
31. Policy DM1requires development to enhance residential amenities; the
character and appearance of urban areas and to enhance biodiversity
(avoiding significant adverse impacts). Development should make efficient
use of land; take full and proper account of the context of the site, not
involve the loss of or damage to landscape features of value to the
character of the area, include a landscape scheme, incorporate provision
for people with disabilities and create accessible communities that cater
for all, inhibit criminal and anti-social behaviour and incorporate on-site
waste management.
Character and Appearance:
32. The site is located to the rear of the existing development in Falcon square
and accessed from the access road adjacent to the rear gardens of
Greenfinch Close. The proposal is within a backland setting, while this can
be harmful in certain circumstances, the dwellings would not be easily
perceptible from Falcon Square or Greenfinch Close and would not detract
from the areas of open space. Other examples of backland development
are evident in the locality, with a pair of semi-detached properties
previously constructed off Falcon Square (29a & 29b), Greenfinch Close
(8a-8d) and Linnet Square.
33. The properties would have a maximum ridge height of 7.8m and a
maximum eaves height of 5m. The overall width of the properties would be
9.9m and the depth would be 9.3m. The overall scale and massing would
be similar to that approved for the single dwelling under planning
permission F/21/90202.
Impact on the Special Policy Area:
34. The area is located within the Aviary Estate which is character area ELAC
24 of the Eastleigh Character Area Appraisal (2008). Semi-detached
dwellings/pairs are listed as characteristic of the ‘position of building within
plot’ and the ‘period/type’ of buildings present in the character area. Public
open spaces at the centre of loops are ‘prominent’ as a
‘node/landmark/view’ in the character area appraisal.
35. The estate is subject to a Special Policy Area controlled by policy E10
whereby the size, scale, architectural style, materials and detailing of any
proposal should closely reflect the character of the existing development;
and the open spaces identified on the proposals map should be retained
and their settings not adversely affected.
36. The roof design on the gable end on the front elevation would echo the
side facing cat-slide roof and proportions of other properties in the locality.
The roof would also be hipped. The ‘façade/roof form’ are characteristics

20

as set out in the character area appraisal. The proportions, fenestration
and materials are all typical of properties across the Aviary Estate.
37. The proposed dwellings would be semi-detached and would not detract
from the existing areas of open space.
38. The development would be in keeping with prevailing development
character of the area in accordance with the Eastleigh Character Area
Appraisal and local plan policy E10.
Residential Amenity:
39. Amended plans were received on 23/05/2020 which adjusted the internal
floor areas and separation distances from neighbouring properties.
40. The separation distances would be 12m from 69 Falcon Square and
approx. 15.7m from 67 Falcon Square. The small window on the first floor
of this elevation would be obscure glazed, serving a bathroom (nonhabitable room). The view to 69 would be at an angle of 45 degrees and
the view would be a lesser, but still oblique angle, towards 67. The view
towards 6a and 6b Greenfinch Close would be at an oblique angle, with a
separation of approx. 12.2m. As such, the angle and separation distances,
even though below the Quality Places SPD threshold of 22m, are similar
to that presented under planning permission F/21/90202 and not
considered to be unacceptable to either existing or proposed residents.
There are comparable separation distances and relationships between
properties evident across the estate.
41. The properties would be more than 9 metres from nearby gardens which is
considered to maintain an adequate level of privacy. Additional shadow
would be cast over the neighbouring garden of No. 69 Falcon Square to
the north, however this garden is of considerable size with the most used
part appearing to be adjacent to the house. Therefore, the loss of light is
not considered to have a significant detrimental impact on the
neighbouring occupiers. The remaining shadow would be cast over the
site and adjacent access road. On balance the impact on neighbouring
properties is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with Policy
DM1.
Highway Matters:
42. Further amended plans were received on 23/05/2020 which proposed a
‘chevron’ style parking arrangement as opposed to ‘tandem’ style and
further landscaping around the parking spaces to the front of the
properties.
43. The application site can be accessed along the footway opposite the site
leading to Greenfinch Close.

21

44. Vehicle access is available using the access road on the western side of
the site, this is adopted highway and the highway officer has no objection
to its use. 4 car parking spaces are provided on site which meets the
requirements of the Residential Parking Standards SPD for 2.no 2
bedroomed dwellings.
45. The Highway Officer has also commented in respect of highway
movements, “the parking associated with the two proposed dwellings
would be contained within the site and so no additional obstruction to the
rear service roads, and as such, the existing situation in the area (in terms
of refuse collections and access) can continue unchanged”.
Trees:
46. No trees are likely to be impacted by the proposal but could be damaged
during construction. The tree officer recommends that a condition is
imposed requiring compliance with a tree protection plan that has been
agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The applicant has agreed this
pre-commencement condition and it is therefore recommended.
Ecology:
47. The Council’s Ecologist comments that if the pond is to be removed, a
precautionary method must be followed to avoid any harm to other
amphibians that may be using the pond and the biodiversity
enhancements in 2.1.6 of the PEA report by KJF Consultancy are
satisfactory and should be implemented. The biodiversity enhancements
can be conditioned and the recommended precautionary pond dismantling
method statement can also be conditioned as part of the construction
environmental management plan (CEMP).
48. A SUDs plan is also required and the applicant has agreed this precommencement condition and it is therefore recommended.
Impact on Special Protection Areas
49. The proposal is considered to result in a likely significant impact on a
European Protected site (SPA, SAC or Ramsar). HRA (Habitat
Regulations Assessment) screening was required for this development as
it falls inside the designated zone of impact.
Recreational Impacts: The New Forest Special Area of Conservation
(SAC) and New Forest Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site
50. The application site falls within the 13.8km catchment area from the
boundary of the New Forest protected sites. The Council’s interim strategy
uses existing and future land acquisitions to provide further sites to
mitigate the recreation impact on the New Forest from the increased
number of visits from the occupiers of new residential development within
Eastleigh borough to March 2027.

22

51. Eastleigh housing growth will account for just over 20% of all planned new
residential development between 5-14km from the New Forest protected
sites. The interim strategy is therefore calculated based on a 20%
contribution towards the total SANG required (equating to 1.6ha per 1,000
population). This results in a requirement of 21.7ha of SANG within
Eastleigh borough. The SANG provision will include both new greenspace
sites and improvements to increase the attractiveness and capacity of
existing greenspaces throughout the year which can therefore function as
SANG.
52. The SANG contribution will deliver a list of projects in the borough focused
on improvements to Itchen Valley Country Park (IVCP). This is an existing
open space at the centre of the borough with public access with the scope
to significantly increase its capacity. This is through the extension into
adjacent land and by improvements to the existing open space to make it
more attractive for visitors who would otherwise visit the New Forest. It is
anticipated that the projects will be in place by Summer 2023.
53. The Council is satisfied as competent authority that further mitigation will
be in place prior to the occupation and is keeping a record of
developments reliant on this strategy and their occupation dates. The
mitigation, approved at Cabinet on the 24th March 2022, sets out an indexlinked 1 April 2022 payment per dwelling at £1161, split 3 ways between a
New Forest Ranger (£40), New Forest SANG (£1112) and New Forest
SANG monitoring (£9). This will be secured by S106 legal agreement.
54. On this basis, it is considered that the proposed development would not
result in a significant impact on the New Forest designated sites and
would not act against the stated conservation objectives of the European
sites.
Nutrient Neutrality:
55. The issue of new development achieving ‘Nutrient Neutrality’ is a matter
that the LPA is required to address.
56. The water environment within the Solent region is one of the most
important for wildlife in the United Kingdom. The Solent water environment
is internationally important for its wildlife and is protected under the Water
Environment Regulations and the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations as well as national protection for many parts of the coastline
and their sea. There are high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus input into
this water environment with sound evidence that these nutrients are
causing eutrophication at the designated sites (Solent & Southampton
Water Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar site and the Solent
Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC)). These nutrient inputs are
currently caused mostly by wastewater from existing housing and
agricultural sources. The resulting dense mats of green algae are
impacting on the Solent’s protected habitats and bird species.

23

57. There is the potential for future housing developments (which involve a net
increase in dwellings) across the Solent region to further exacerbate these
impacts and thereby create a risk to the potential future conservation
status of the Solent Complex and the features for which it is designated,
therefore acting against the stated conservation objectives of the
European sites.
58. Natural England have advised that there is currently uncertainty over
whether mitigation will be required when delivering new residential
development to address the existing levels of nitrogen and phosphorus
input to the water environment. In light of this, and to provide confidence
that the development will be deliverable, it is Natural England’s advice that
proposed residential developments achieve nutrient neutrality. To this end,
Natural England have published methodology to calculate nitrate levels
and produce a ‘nutrient budget’ regarding the existing and predicted levels
of nitrates leaching into the water environment. This budget should be able
to demonstrate no increase in nutrients, known as “nutrient neutrality”.
Where an increase in nutrient levels is expected, Natural England advise
mitigation should be provided to offset this increase and ensure the
protected habitats are protected, prior to issuing a decision. Following
recent case law, the LPA are no longer able to condition mitigation details
be provided post permission being granted.
59. The proposal would result in an increase in nitrogen entering the Solent
via Chickenhall Waste Water Treatment Works and thereby affecting the
conservation objectives of the Solent and Southampton Water SPA.
Through mitigation off-site through the removal of land from agricultural
use is provided and, as competent authority, Eastleigh Borough Council
has undertaken the Appropriate Assessment on this basis with the
conclusion that the impact can be satisfactorily mitigated. The Applicant
has bought nitrates credits from Eastleigh Borough Council’s scheme, and
this is to be secured before issuing the decision.
Recreational Disturbance - Solent Special Protection Areas (SPAs)
60. The site is located within the 5.6km buffer of the Solent & Southampton
Water Special Protection Area, which is an internationally designated
conservation site and is protected for its overwintering birds. It is
recognised that new house building is placing increased pressure on these
overwintering birds from more people visiting the coastline. As such the
Council requires all housing developments within the buffer to make a
financial contribution towards the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy,
which aims to limit recreation disturbance to our coastline through careful
management. The A contribution of £1,028 would be paid in line with the
Bird Aware Solent Definitive Strategy Rates (As raised in Natural
England’s comments) to mitigate the increased recreational pressure
resulting from the development

24

Sustainability Measures and Climate Change:
61. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
62. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF, development plan and emerging plan policy do not set this as
a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be considered
alongside all other material considerations. In any case addressing climate
change is a core part of the NPPF and emerging plan policy. The need to
support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment
for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.
63. The NPPF aims for the need for housing to be met, and policy S2 of the
Local Plan sets a target for 14,580 dwellings to be provided by 2036. The
NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan and energy and water
elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD
require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, climate
change and energy use. When considering the impact of climate change,
the proposed development is expected to be resilient to the potential
effects of climate change and is expected to reduce/limit impacts on
climate emissions as a result of the development or its use.
Human Health:
64. Human health relating to noise and ground conditions has been
considered and no significant adverse effects are likely. The traffic and air
quality impacts or any other possible impacts are also not considered
significantly harmful to human health.
Planning obligation/considerations:
65. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Policies
DM38 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, the Council’s
‘Planning Obligations’ SPD, and the requirements of Regulation 122 of the
Community Infrastructure Regulations, there is a requirement for planning
obligations to ensure on and off-site provision for facilities and
infrastructure made necessary by the development, and to mitigate
against any increased need/pressure on existing facilities.

25

66. Contributions / Obligations towards the provision of the following
infrastructure have been agreed or are subject to agreement and would be
secured via a Section 106 agreement index linked as per the Planning
Obligations SPD and HCC requirements:



New Forest and Solent Recreational pressure
Nutrient mitigation

67. The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure will
comply with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community
Infrastructure Levy 2010, in that the monies would go towards the projects
which are directly related to the development and are fairly and reasonably
related in scale and kind to the proposed development. The contributions
would be index-linked to ensure the contributions rise in line with the costs
of providing the identified projects/measures. The obligations sought are
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms and to
meet the needs generated by the new residents and the potential impact
on existing services and facilities.
Other material considerations:
The Council’s Five-Year Housing Land Supply:
68. Also of note is the latest position on the Government- required 5 year
housing land supply. The published figure for November 2021 confirms
that the Council currently has a 5.9 year supply.
Equalities Implications:
69. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:-

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under this Act;
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
70. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Refuse Collection:
71. Direct Services have confirmed that refuse bins are collected from Falcon
square (main roadway) on a Thursday and there is another separate

26

collection from the service road which could serve the proposed
development on a Tuesday.
Conclusion
72. The proposal would be in keeping with the prevailing character of the
Aviary Estate and the construction of 2.no 2-bed dwellings on this plot
would make effective use of land.
73. The design amendments incorporated into the scheme would not result in
an overbearing development or adversely impact on neighbour amenity.
74. As such the recommended is Permit, subject to completion of S106
agreement to secure mitigation towards the development’s impact on the
Special Protection Area by way of nutrients and recreational disturbance.

27

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Eastleigh Local Area Committee 7 June 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

F/22/92964
Dawn Errington
28 April 2022
Neighbourhood Square, Highwood Avenue, North
Stoneham Park, Eastleigh
Eastleigh Borough Council
External permanent public art installation in the form of a
clock utilising real-time bus arrivals data and coloured LED
lighting, mounted to a slim mast or pole (full height 5.652
metres)
Subject to the consideration of any further neighbour and
consultee comments Permit

___________________________________________________________________
CONDITIONS AND REASONS:
1. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years
from the date of this decision. Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance
with the following plans numbered: LD.1085.08.20-A.01- REV04, 0243
Here There Clock – Design Clip1 Rev01. Reason: For the avoidance of
doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. The materials to be used must match as closely as possible, in type,
colour and texture those listed in the Materials Section of the application
form and Appendix C- Materials technical data sheets. Reason: To
ensure a satisfactory visual relationship of the new development to the
existing.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework, Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to
the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a
timely manner.
Report:
This application has been referred to Committee because Eastleigh Borough
Council are the applicants, and the proposals are of public interest.
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
1. North Stoneham Park is a new 1100+ dwelling residential development
approximately two-thirds constructed to the south of Eastleigh. It is

29

therefore creating a new site character, the concept for which includes the
provision of new public spaces with public art.
Description of Application
2. The application is for an external permanent public art installation to be
located within public open space on the west side of Highwood Avenue in
the North Stoneham Park development known as the Neighbourhood
Square. The public art would be sited in the north-east corner of the
square, adjacent a road (not yet constructed) and Highwood Avenue, and
close to a bus stop. The work comprises an installation in the form of a
clock utilising real-time bus arrival data. The circular clock face with
intrinsic coloured LED lighting would be mounted to a slim mast or pole.
This is fixed underground via a baseplate to a concrete pad foundation.
The full height of the structure from ground to top is 5.652 metres.
3. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical
assessments:
 21117 - Here there Clock - Structural report P1
 LD.1085.08.20-A.01-REV.05 Construction - General Arrangement
SW420_MP_HTC_001 rev A - Foundation
 set Works_MP_Here There_Technical Stage Report - Planning
Statement/DAS
 Appendix A - Plan of Neighbourhood square
 Appendix B - Artist Concept
 Appendix C - Materials technical data sheets
 Appendix D - 0243 Here There Clock - Design Clip 1 Rev 01 Appendix
E - LD.1085.08.20-A.01-REV.04 LIST
4. The proposal has been screened out under the Town and Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England) Regulations 2011
due to its minor nature. Screening under the Habitats Directive was also
not required due to its minor nature.
Relevant Planning History
 Planning permission O/15/76023 for 1100 dwellings, public open space,
primary school, local centre and other infrastructure granted January
2016.
 Reserved matters consent R/17/79892 for first residential phase
included public open space areas and neighbourhood square west of
through road.
Representations Received
5. Occupiers of completed adjoining properties notified by letter and site
notice displayed. Consultation end date 3 June 2022.
 1 letter of support received

30

 Any further representations will be reported.
6. Pre-application community consultation was also undertaken in June-July
2021 and feedback incorporated into the application.
Consultation Responses
7. Direct Services – Street Scene and Waste Team – no objection
8. Southampton Airport – any comments to be reported
9. Community Development Officer – have received a large number of
positive comments from residents in relation to the clock. The design
reflects the history of the site and the location fits well with the bus stop on
the estate, it adds interest to the Neighbourhood Square and relates the
new housing to the existing church at North Stoneham.
10. Asset Management – any comments to be reported
Relevant Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site





Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within HRA Screening Area
Within Airport Safeguarding area
HCC Historic Parks or Garden register

Development Plan Policies
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 (Adopted April 2022)
Strategic policies:
 S1 (Sustainable development);
Development Management policies:
 DM1 (General Development Criteria);
Supplementary Planning Documents and EBC Strategies




Quality Places (November 2011);
Planning Obligations (July 2008, updated 2010)
Public Art Strategy 2015-2019

National Planning Policy Framework 2021
11. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of

31

sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.
12. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas.
National Planning Practice Guidance
13. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
14. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 20162036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (which is not
applicable in this case). The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance
constitute material considerations of significant weight.
Principle:
15. Adopted Local Plan Policy DM 1(k) requires proposals to “include
provision for public art associated with new large-scale development in
accordance with the Council’s adopted Public Art Strategy”. The Public
Art Strategy 2015-2019 recognises that public art can enhance open
spaces and help create local distinctiveness, and specifically supports the
provision of public art at this site. The Section 106 agreement associated
with the planning permission for the North Stoneham Park Development
(formerly known as Land at Chestnut Avenue) secured financial
contributions in accordance with the Council’s Planning Obligations SPD
towards to the provision of on-site public art, and sets down arrangements
for a Public Art Steering Group to procure the public art. This application
is a result of this process, and the proposals are clearly supported in
principle.
Sustainable Development:
16. Section 2 of the NPPF (February 2019) states that the purpose of the
planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development, which can be summarised as meeting the needs of the

32

present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs.
17. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has
three overarching objectives – economic, social, and environmental (which
are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways)
that should be delivered through the preparation and implementation of
plans and the application of the policies in the Framework.
18. Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take
local circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and
opportunities of each area.
19. Each of the three dimensions of sustainable development is considered
below.
Economic Sustainability:
20. The procurement of public art enables creative industries to participate in
the economic growth of the area.
Social Sustainability:
21. The provision of public art supports cultural initiatives promoted through
the Council’s Public Art Strategy and helps support high standards of
design for new development. Integrated public art in turn provides
opportunities for community engagement, supporting wellbeing and social
sustainability.
Environmental Sustainability:
22. Environmental sustainability can consist of the design, ecological, traffic,
amenity and other physical or visual considerations of a scheme.
Design and Appearance:
23. Policy DM1 of the Local Plan requires development to take full and
proper account of the context of the site including the character and
appearance of the locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials,
layout, design and siting. It should also avoid unduly impacting on
neighbouring uses through loss of light or loss of outlook or other
specific amenity impacts.
24. Public art, by its nature, can be unusual or different to its surroundings and
provoke discussion and interaction. It can, however, contribute to a site’s
individual identity and provide opportunities for waymarking or focal points
for large sites. It can also deliver high quality design and environmental
standards and enhance public open space.
25. The proposed “Here/There” clock is one element of the public art strategy
for the North Stoneham Park development. It is not a traditional clock, but
one which is linked to real-time bus information and would relay the
approximate arrival time of the next bus due at the adjoining bus stop,
showing the bus to be either “here” at the bus stop, or “there”, some
distance away, in an abstract way. The hands on the 1.53m diameter

33

clock reflect the one-handed clock at the nearby St Nicolas Church,
Stoneham Lane. Its height reflects the need to be seen from a distance
and its mounting on a 3.7m high pole would enable it to be too high for
vandalism. The LED lights would light the clock and animate the
Neighbourhood Square at night. They would move from red to blue as the
bus gets nearer.
26. The landscaping and design of the Neighbourhood Square in which the
clock is located is not part of this application.
Residential Amenity:
27. Policy DM1 also requires proposed development to avoid unduly impacting
on neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook,
noise and fumes. The proposed installation does not give rise to such
impacts and is compliant with Policy DM1.
Human Health:
28. Human health relating to safety has been considered and satisfactory
information on product safety of the materials to be used and the design
specifications, including loading from climbing etc, on the structure have
been provided.
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change:
29. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
30. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF, development plan and emerging plan policy do not set this as
a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be considered
alongside all other material considerations. In any case addressing climate
change is a core part of the NPPF and emerging plan policy. The need to
support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment
for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.
31. The NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan and energy and
water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development
SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use,

34

climate change and energy use. When considering the impact of climate
change, the proposed development is expected to be resilient to the
potential effects of climate change and is expected to reduce/limit impacts
on climate emissions as a result of the development or its use.
Other material considerations:
Equalities Implications:
32. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:-

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under this Act;
a.
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
b.
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
33. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Conclusion
34. The proposed art installation is expected to enhance the North Stoneham
development in a unique way and is compliant with the relevant planning
policy considerations. Permission is therefore recommended subject to
conditions and the consideration of any further neighbour and consultee
comments received before committee.

35

36

Agenda Item 9
EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 7 June 2022
APPOINTMENTS TO REGUALTORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS
AND OUTSIDE BODIES
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendation
It is recommended that:
(1)
(2)

the nominations for 2022/23 municipal year appointments to regulatory panels
and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 are approved; and
the proposed nominations for 2022/23 municipal year appointments to
Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are approved.

Summary
Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the council’s
statutory obligations. The other groups comprise those established to share information or
manage local initiatives. Outside bodies are external organisations, including formal or
informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have requested that
the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to them or to which
the Council expects to make appointments.
Statutory Powers
Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act 2011.

Strategic Implications
1.

This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the
Council’s Corporate Plan objectives.

Introduction
2.

Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the
council statutory obligations, such as Licensing. The other groups comprise
those established to share information or manage local initiatives.

3.

Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a
representative to them. Participation in outside bodies:




Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions, priorities or
community leadership roles;
Supports partnership and joint working; and
Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise.

37

4.

All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough
Council on these groups. Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and
their participation in it.

Proposal
5.

This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to several
Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations have been
made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 22-23 and it is
recommended that these are approved as follows.
Regulatory Panels

Councillor nominations for 22-23

Licensing – to deal with issues not
covered by the Licensing Act 2003 or
the Gambling Act 2005

All members of the Committee to be
appointed to a pool from which any
three can be selected.

Licensing Panels as appointed by full
Council for the purposes of the
Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling
Act 2005

Cllr A Bourne
Cllr W Irish
Cllr T Park

Other Groups

6.

Eastleigh Borough Council/Test
Valley Liaison Group

Councillor W Irish

Shopwatch

Councillor S Tyson-Payne

Eastleigh Museum Joint Management
Committee

Councillors W Irish, T Park and P
Bicknell

This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to
Outside Bodies within the Eastleigh Local Area. A list of outside bodies to
which the Local Councillors makes appointments to and the recommended
nominees can be found at Appendix A.

Financial Implications
7.

There are no financial implications associated with this decision.

Risk Assessment
8.

Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being
involved with outside bodies as they must:



38

Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct when
they are acting as a representative of the Council.
Comply with the code of conduct of the outside body they are appointed to
if one exists.



Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough Council where
it relates to a body, they are appointed to by the Borough Council.

9.

All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their
appointment with the outside body, they have access to the key documents
regulating the organisation such as its constitution or terms of reference to
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do and receive a
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.

10.

There is a risk that appointments will not be made to all the outside bodies
which could hinder the Borough Council in furthering its interests and
priorities, and not develop the external facing role of Councillors.

Equality and Diversity Implications
11.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is
making an appointment outside bodies. Equality and diversity will be
considered as part of the work of these bodies.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
12.

Councillors travelling to meetings via unsustainable means could represent an
increase in greenhouse gases but some of this will be offset during social
distancing measures as many meetings are postponed or held virtually.
Councillors are encouraged to travel sustainably where possible and do not
receive paper copies of agendas.

Conclusion
13.

That the appointments to the Regulatory Panels, other groups and Outside
Bodies should approved for the 2022/23 municipal year.
GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

24 May 2022
Guy Riddoch
02380 683369
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. None.

39

Appendix A

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

AGE CONCERN, EASTLEIGH

2022-23 Representative:

Councillor W Irish

Contact Officer:

Guy Riddoch

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

To advise and assist in solving the problems of the
elderly people of Eastleigh and to provide a social and
recreational facility.

and objectives of organisation:
Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

Problems mainly in allowances and housing. Will writing,
inheritance financial arrangements, general problems of
old age such as inability to housekeep and do gardening.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

7

4.45 pm -6.00 pm

One Month

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

A knowledge and sympathy of/for the problems of the
elderly and a willingness to try to correct them where
possible.

Details of any training provided:

Nil - except if elected on to Executive.

Details of anticipated workload:

Follow-up work.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Mr D Kandiah, Chair, Age Concern Eastleigh,
20 Romsey Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9AL

40

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

ASIAN WELFARE AND CULTURE ASSOCIATION

2022-23 Representative:

Councillor D Mann

Contact Officer:

Rajni Bali

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of organisation:
Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

Tackling health and social inequalities for excluded
groups. Enhancing community cohesion.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

Varies. Usually 3pm on
Wednesday.

One week.

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Good understanding of issues affecting BME
communities and individuals. Ability to 'stand up' for
unpopular causes.

Details of any training provided:

N/A

Details of anticipated workload:

Member will be attending meetings on request of
committee as and when required by ACWA.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other
work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Rajni Bali, Community Engagement Specialist
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

41

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

BARTON PEVERIL/EASTLEIGH COLLEGE/QUILLEY
LIAISON GROUP

2022-23 Representative:

Councillors C Spencer, T Park and P Bicknell

Contact Officer:

Guy Riddoch

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

To act as a point of liaison between residents'
representatives, south ward councillors and the college
management team. To promote positive relationships
and address local issues.

and objectives of organisation:

Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

Community interaction between residents and students.
Addressing issues of mutual concern. Agency
attendance according to agenda (ie Police, Engineers)

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

Usually 3 or 4

5.00 pm to 6.30 pm

Arranged at each
meeting

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Knowledge of south ward, interest in college and
resident issues.

Details of any training provided:

The Principal of the College provides a background to
the college service plan.

Details of anticipated workload:

Attendance at meetings. Follow up action usually
undertaken by the Area Co-ordinator.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other
work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

College Principal,
Barton Peveril College, Chestnut Avenue,
Eastleigh, SO50 5ZA

42

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

LAKESIDE COUNTRY PARK USERS GROUP

2022-23 Representative:

Councillor P Bicknell

Contact Officer:

Martin Garea-Balado

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

Forum for involving user groups in the planning and
management of the Country Park

and objectives of organisation:
Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

A new Management Plan is to be produced for the
Country Park which will take account of the impact of
new residential development at South Street/Monks
Way, and utilise the developers contributions arising
from that development for the future improvement of
Lakeside.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

Currently 3 per year

7.00 pm

Normally 4 months

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

An interest in recreation and countryside management,
experience of public consultation and partnership
working; knowledge of the operation and management
of a large public park.

Details of any training provided:

To be agreed.

Details of anticipated workload:

In addition to the formal meetings, it is anticipated that
the Member representative would also be involved in
occasional informal internal and external meetings,
reviewing reports and statistics on the operation and
use of the site and participating in service reviews.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other work?

Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Martin Garea-Balado Lakeside Manager
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

43

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

PAVILION ON THE PARK

2022-23 Representative:

Councillors W Irish, C Spencer

Contact Officer:

Guy Riddoch

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

To provide a facility and focus for local community. The
Centre is an independent and totally voluntary trust

and objectives of organisation:
Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

Community performing arts for the young. Young
families. Senior citizens.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

6.30 pm

Two weeks +

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Knowledge of area and the requirements of residents.
Full knowledge of community support available from
Borough.

Details of any training provided:

None.

Details of anticipated workload:

Currently meetings only.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other
work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Community Development Manager
Pavilion On The Park, 1 Kingfisher Road
Eastleigh, SO50 9LH

44

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

THE HUB

2022-23 Representative:

Councillor S Beer

Contact Officer:

Amanda Adams

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

A facility that hosts a programme of recreational and social
opportunities for all sections of the community. (Managed
by the Youth Options on behalf of the Council and in
conjunction with Eastleigh Rugby Club)

and objectives of organisation:

Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

Programme is evolving with boxing, fitness classes,
martial arts and social functions. Changing rooms used by
rugby, football and cricket players. Physiotherapy unit has
relocated to the Hub from the Mount Hospital.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):

Two

4.30 pm

6 months

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Knowledge of local issues/needs. Ability to chair
meetings.

Details of any training provided:

None.

Details of anticipated workload:

Currently meetings only but may become involved in high
level issues especially those requiring funding.

eg will member attend meeting
only or be involved in other
work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Amanda Adams, Health and Wellbeing Specialist,
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

45

PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23
Eastleigh Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHAMPTON (WIDE LANE
SPORTS FACILITIES - USER ADVISORY GROUP)

2022-23 Representative:

Vacancy

Contact Officer:

Richard Wood

Committee:

Eastleigh Local Area Committee

Terms of reference

1. Producing and agreeing an annual community
sports development plan;

and objectives of organisation:
2. Monitoring and reviewing the use of the facilities by
the University and the local community;
3. Discussing and advising on the fees to be charged
for the use of the facilities;
4. Monitoring and reviewing accidents and complaints;
5. Monitoring and reviewing the condition and
maintenance of the facilities.
Key areas of interest and topical
Issues for the organisation:

The Council has an agreement with the University to
provide outdoor sports facilities for the Eastleigh
community, thus helping to address the shortfall in
accessible sports pitches in the Borough.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of
meeting(s):

TBA
Evenings (exact times to
be agreed)

46

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s)
At least 3 months
normally

Desired skills, qualities, knowledge
or experience Members should
have:

An interest in sports development and promoting
active participation in physical recreation; experience
of partnership working; knowledge of the operation of
large public leisure facilities.

Details of any training provided:

To be agreed.

Details of anticipated workload:

Formal meetings only.

eg will member attend meeting only
or be involved in other work?
Name and address of contact for
organisation:

Richard Wood, Health and Wellbeing Specialist
Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Eastleigh Borough Council

47

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 7 June 2022
FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that
(1)

£7,000 is allocated for public art on the town centre colonnades from
developers’ contributions;

(2)

£8,000 is allocated for repairs to a footbridge in Fleming Park from
developers’ contributions;

(3)

£6,000 is allocated to the town centre toilet improvement project from
developers’ contributions;

(4)

£20,000 is allocated to the Hub Tennis Courts improvements from developers’
contributions, subject to approval by the developer;

(5)

£7,000 is allocated to the North Stoneham Park events space and kick-about
area from developers’ contributions;

(6)

£15,000 is allocated to the Litter Bin Reserve from developers’ contributions;

(7)

£8,000 is allocated for a repair to the stream bank at Oaklands from
developers’ contributions;

(8)

£5,000 is allocated for hanging baskets in the town centre from revenue
budget; and

(9)

A new Cemetery Genealogy Search fee is introduced from 1 July 2022.

Summary
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital, and
revenue budget.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence,
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

49

Strategic Implications
1.

The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs.
The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling
Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an
Excellent Environment, and Reinvigorating Town and Local Centres.

Colonnade public art
2.

A series of public art vinyls were commission in the Autumn 2021, to be
installed in five locations on the underside of the colonnades glass canopy.
The £7,000 cost was originally funded from the Welcome Back Fund, with the
aim of adding colour to the town centre and attracting visitors to return. The
company producing the vinyls has run onto difficulties producing over 120m of
complex vinyl printing, leading to a delay from the planned installation at the
end of March to the last week of May this year. The Welcome Back Fund can
only be used for projects delivered in the 2021/22 financial year, as a result, it
can no longer be used, and alternative funding is required.

3.

It is recommended that £7,000 is allocated for this project from public art
developers’ contributions from DCF/11/70108, Taylor Wimpey, Travis Perkins
Site, Mill Street, Eastleigh.

Fleming Park footbridge repair
4.

The main wooden beam supporting the footbridge in Fleming Park,
immediately to the north of the motorway underpass, has failed and now
needs replacing. It is hoped that the beam can be replaced along with the
wooden treads without further impact on the bridge, although it is possible the
whole bridge may need to be replaced. An £8,000 budget estimate has been
suggested by Transport and Engineering Team should the whole bridge need
replacing.

5.

It is therefore recommended that up to £8,000 is allocated from developer’s
contributions from O/15/76023, Highwood, Land South of Chestnut Ave.,
North Stoneham Park, Receipt Date: 04/09/2020 taken for improvements to
Fleming Park.

Town centre toilets improvement project

50

6.

The refurbishment of the bus station toilets is progressing well, and it is
anticipated they will be re-opened by the end of June target date. £150,000
was originally allocated for the project, however, as with many construction
projects, the cost of building materials has increased substantially, and we
now predict a small budget shortfall in the region of £2,000 to £6,000.

7.

It is therefore recommended that an additional allocation of £6,000 is made
from developers’ contributions from F/19/87086, Highwood, Land South of
Eastleigh Borough Council

Chestnut Ave., North Stoneham Park, Receipt Date: 28/02/2022, taken for
Eastleigh Town Centre improvements.

The Hub Tennis Courts improvements
8.

The tennis courts at the Hub are currently in a poor state and very underused.
The latter is a result of both the condition of the courts and the poor booking
and access arrangements currently in place. A recent condition survey
recommends a resurface of the courts, replacement fencing and a new
access control on the gate. The total capital cost is in the region of £60,000.

9.

The Leisure Services Manager has been working with the Lawn Tennis
Association (LTA) and local tennis providers to review the operating model, to
enable improved access and increased income generation. While further work
is required to determine the best operating model (via either an in-house
option or external provider), all models involve the use of on-line booking
systems, which provide a code for a keypad on the tennis court gate. This is a
proven model, which is working well at Woodhouse Lane, Hedge End and
Lapstone Playing Fields, Fair Oak.

10.

The LTA have identified the Hub as a priority site and are offering a
substantial grant to improve the courts. In this case the Council would need to
provide £20,000 match funding toward a £60,000 total project cost. There is a
corresponding £20,000 underspend from the developers’ contributions
allocated to the North Stoneham alternative sports provision.

11.

Councillors support this project, and it is therefore recommended that £20,000
is reallocated from developers’ contributions previously allocated for
alternative sports provision from O/15/76023, Highwood, Land South of
Chestnut Ave., North Stoneham Park, subject to approval being given by the
developer.

North Stoneham Park event space and kick-about area
12.

The North Stoneham development is proving very popular with local residents.
In particular the new community building, operated by the YMCA and the main
area of public open space (North Stoneham Park). The Council’s Community
Development Worker for the estate has been consulting residents about local
needs and ways to improve the estate further.

13.

Two of the highest priorities identified early on are the lack of outside space at
the community centre to support community events and the lack of a level
kickabout area. A 20m by 40m area of open space has been identified on the
western boundary of the Community Centre, which has the potential to
address both issues. This is reasonably level and, while it is very stony, it
could be improved at relatively little cost. A provisional cost estimate of £5,000
has been provided by the Project Management Team. It is suggested that
further quotes are obtained from external playing pitch providers and our
internal Construction and Maintenance Team for implementation in the
autumn this year.

Eastleigh Borough Council

51

14.

It is recommended that £7,000 is allocated, to allow for a small contingency,
from developers’ contributions taken for Stoneham Community Building and/or
Eastleigh Town Centre improvements, from F/19/87086, Highwood, Land
South of Chestnut Ave., North Stoneham Park, Receipt Date: 28/02/2022.

Litter bin reserve
15.

The Committee aims to bring all existing assets and street furniture up to a
consistently high standard. As part of this approach, it regularly tops up a
Litter Bin Reserve budget to fund the replacement of damaged litter bins and
provide new ones in new developments and where litter problems are
reported. The current reserve has now been spent.

16.

It is therefore recommended that £15,000 is allocated for the Litter Bin
Reserve from the following developers’ contributions.
F/19/87086, Highwood, Land South of Chestnut Ave.,
North Stoneham Park, Receipt Date:28/02/2022 taken
for community infrastructure.

£6,000

DCF/14/74873, Taylor Wimpey, Premier Foods Bakery,
Toynbee Road, Eastleigh Receipt Date:02/07/2015

£6,000

DCF/15/77475, Elite Murphy Development, 37 Twyford
Rd, Eastleigh Receipt Date:29/02/2016

£1,468.9

TRF/11/70078, Bargate Homes, The Build Centre,
Allbrook Hill, Eastleigh Receipt Date:07/08/2015
(previously allocated to Knowle Hill Build Centre
Footpath Works)

£1,531.10

Oaklands stream bank repair
17.

This Committee has previously allocated a provisional £10,000 budget to
make the stream bank safe between Oaklands and Bournemouth Road,
prevent further erosion and the possible undermining of Bournemouth Road.
The Highway Engineering Team have since prepared a specification and
sought quotes. Two companies submitted very similar value quotes, with BDS
Ltd providing a higher quality option, valued at £18,000.

18.

It is therefore recommended that a further £8,000 is allocated for this work
from developers’ contributions as shown in the table below.
OSZ/40640/000/00, Bryant Homes for Nightingale
Primary School Receipt Date:16/07/2008 (an underspend
previously allocated for improvements to Falcon Square
public open space)

52

Eastleigh Borough Council

£3,633.98

OSF/08/63182, Atlantic Housing Ltd, Velmore Estate,
Eastleigh (off site) Receipt Date:14/12/2009

£4,366.02

Town centre hanging baskets
19.

Local Councillors are committed to investing in a range of public realm
improvements across town centre, to encourage footfall and support local
businesses. Hanging baskets have been part of this package for the past two
years and have proved popular. Councillors wish to continue with 50 baskets
in Market Street, High Street and Leigh Road Precinct, hung from the
colonnades. It is recommended that £5,000 is set allocated from the revenue
budget.

Introduction of a Genealogy Search fee for cemeteries
20.

Neighbourhood Services, who operate the Borough cemeteries, are receiving
an increasing demand for genealogy searches. These take on average an
hour to complete and the team typically receive 10 requests per month. Each
search requires an administration officer to review the cemetery records and
provide grave maps and names.

21.

This is a cost to the Council and has not been previously planned for. Other
Councils have introduced to charge for the service, for example, Southampton
City Council currently charge £30 per search.

22.

It is recommended that a new Genealogy Search fee is introduced to come
into effect from 1 July 2022, set at £30 per search.

Equality and Diversity Implications
23.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been carried out for the Town
Centre toilet project and the resultant design has incorporated its findings, for
example all four cubicles are accessible for wheelchair users, with two being
built to full disability access standards. This is a considerable improvement
over the previous toilets, which had only one accessible unit. A full EIA has
not been carried for other projects at this stage, as the projects are designed
to be inclusive and increase access, however, separate further consideration
of the inclusivity and accessibility aspects will be carried out as part of the
project delivery.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
24.

The projects within this report seek to enable local people to access facilities
at a local level and reduce the need to travel. Other environmental factors
have also been considered. For example, the hanging baskets use peat-free
compost, water-saving gel and plant species that are attractive to pollinators.

Eastleigh Borough Council

53

25.

The preferred bid for Oaklands stream bank repair specified a combination of
stone gabions and reinforced earth banks, planted with wildflowers to
enhance the benefit to wildlife.

26.

The new toilets now include an array of water and energy saving features and
is more vandal resistant and easy to clean. This should result in a
considerable improvement in terms of CO2 emissions.

27.

Litter bins reduce the amount of litter dropped within the local area. While this
clearly improves the look feel of the public realm it also reduces pollution to
watercourses and hazards to local wildlife and pets. The move to more robust
metal bins, away from plastic, provides longer life and reduces the amount of
toxic fumes from bin fires. They are also easier to repair.

Conclusion
28.

This report recommends the allocation of the Committee’s revenue and capital
budgets to help improve the quality of life within the Local Area.
GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

7 June 2022
Guy Riddoch
02380 683369
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None

54

Eastleigh Borough Council

